MINUTES OF THE SPECIAL MEETING OF THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES SOUTHERN ILLINOIS UNIVERSITY DECEMBER 9, 2015

Pursuant to notice, a special meeting was called by the Chair of the Board

of Trustees of Southern Illinois University, and the meeting convened at 10:30 a.m.,

Wednesday, December 9, 2015, in the Large Dining Room of the Stone Center, Southern

Illinois University System Office, Carbondale, Illinois. The meeting was called to order by

Vice Chair Manering. The following members of the Board were present:

Dr. Donna Manering, Vice Chair Mr. Joel Sambursky, Secretary Hon. J. Phil Gilbert Dr. Shirley Portwood Mr. Dillon Santoni Mr. Allen Shelton Ms. Amy Sholar

The following member was absent:

Dr. Roger Herrin

A motion was made by Trustee Gilbert and was duly seconded by Trustee

Sholar to allow Chair Randal Thomas to join by teleconference.

The Executive Secretary reported and the Vice Chair determined that a

quorum was physically present.

Also present for the duration of the meeting were Dr. Randy J. Dunn,

President; Mr. Lucas Crater, General Counsel; and Ms. Misty Whittington, Executive

Secretary of the Board.

Vice Chair Manering explained the procedures for the public comment and

question portion of the Board's agenda.

Dr. Mary Sue Love made a presentation to the Board. She provided information regarding an appeal she filed with the Board of Trustees regarding a personnel matter and asked for their consideration.

Ms. Tierra Carpenter made a presentation to the Board. Ms. Carpenter reviewed her feelings about experience with staff and assistance provided after an alleged sexual assault had occurred on the SIU Carbondale campus. She requested that the Board investigate the matter with the campus Department of Security and the Office of Diversity and Equity.

Ms. Casey Daniels made a presentation to the Board. Ms. Daniels reviewed concerns she had regarding SIU Carbondale policies related to victims of sexual assault.

Dr. Gertrude Pannirselvam made a presentation to the Board. She provided information regarding an appeal she filed with the Board of Trustees regarding a personnel matter.

The Board held a discussion regarding diversity planning for the campuses. Dr. Linda McCabe-Smith, Associate Chancellor for Diversity and Equity, SIU Carbondale; Dr. Wesley McNeese, Office of Diversity, Multicultural and Minority Affairs, SIU School of Medicine; and Dr. Venessa Brown, Associate Chancellor for Institutional Diversity and Inclusion, SIU Edwardsville; provided information and answered questions pertaining to diversity issues on the campuses.

The Board recessed for lunch.

The Board reconvened at 1:05 p.m.

Chancellor Colwell presented tuition proposals for the Carbondale campus. A discussion was held regarding zero planned increases for fees and a three percent tuition increase at the campus.

Trustee Shelton departed the meeting at 1:40 p.m.

Chancellor Hansen presented tuition proposals for the Edwardsville campus. A discussion was held regarding a possible 7 percent tuition increase at that campus. Trustee Portwood expressed concern about the University remaining accessible to students.

Trustee Shelton joined the meeting at 3:00 p.m.

Mr. Kevin Bame, Vice Chancellor for Administration and Finance, SIU Carbondale; and Mr. Phil Gatton, Director of Plant and Service Operations, SIU Carbondale; made a presentation to the Board regarding the Campus Master Plan.

The following matter was presented:

RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF SOUTHERN ILLINOIS UNIVERSITY

WHEREAS, the Board of Trustees of Southern Illinois University is hereby publicly articulating concern for the lack of state investment in public higher education absent a fiscal year 2016 budget; and

WHEREAS, the Board expresses concern that the university's long and proud tradition of student access, inclusiveness, and opportunity is at risk; and

WHEREAS, the Board recognizes Illinois families and students are alarmed with the lack of state supported financial aid and services; and

WHEREAS, the Board acknowledges continued state financial support is a fundamental tenet of the partnership between the state and public universities; and

WHEREAS, the Board recognizes Southern Illinois University is an economic catalyst for the central and southern Illinois region dependent upon state support; and

WHEREAS, the Board has accepted its responsibly to address Illinois fiscal problems by improving efficiencies and accountability within the university;

THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Board of Trustees of Southern Illinois University urges an immediate adoption of a fiscal 2016 State budget to provide critical sustained state support for: student access and opportunity, excellent teaching, cutting edge research, quality of life public service, life nourishing healthcare, and Southern Illinois' economic viability, and

THAT this resolution hereby signed by the Board of Trustees, shall be forwarded to the Governor, the Leaders of the General Assembly and the leadership of the higher education community.

Trustee Gilbert made a motion to approve the resolution. The motion was

duly seconded by Trustee Sholar. The motion passed via voice vote.

Vice Chair Manering shared an Ohio Valley Conference certification for SIU Edwardsville Athletics that would be signed by Chair Thomas on behalf of the Board. It was discussed that for the March 2016 Board meeting, the Board desired to discuss how students are informed about what services are available, and the steps for reporting, in relation to sexual assault. Further, the Board discussed the possibility of having additional discussions regarding diversity issues at that meeting.

At 3:40 p.m., Trustee Sholar moved that the Board go into closed session to consider pending, probable or imminent court proceedings against or on behalf of the Board; information regarding appointment, employment, compensation, discipline, performance or dismissal of specific employees of the public body; and review of minutes of meetings lawfully closed under the Open Meetings Act. The relevant sections of the Open Meetings Act Statute that allow for the closed session are 5 ILCS 120/2(c) (1), (11), and (21). The motion was duly seconded by Chair Thomas. The motion carried by the following recorded vote: aye, Hon. Phil Gilbert; Dr. Donna Manering; Dr. Shirley Portwood; Mr. Joel Sambursky; Mr. Allen Shelton; Ms. Amy Sholar; Maj. Gen. Randal Thomas; nay, none.

At 4:50 p.m., a motion was made by Trustee Sambursky and seconded by Trustee Santoni to adjourn the meeting. The motion passed by a voice vote. No action was requested or taken dur

5

MINUTES OF THE MEETING OF THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES SOUTHERN ILLINOIS UNIVERSITY Vice Chair Manering led the group in the Pledge of Allegiance.

The Vice Chair welcomed Interim Chancellor Colwell to his first Board meeting.

A motion was made by Trustee Sambursky and was duly seconded by Trustee Portwood to allow Chair Randal Thomas to join by teleconference.

The Executive Secretary reported and the Vice Chair determined that a quorum was physically present.

Trustee Shelton moved that the Minutes of the Meetings held September 9 and 10, 2015, be approved. Trustee Sambursky seconded the motion, and the minutes were approved unanimously by voice vote.

Vice Chair Manering reported that on the prior day at the Board's special meeting, it approved release of Executive Session minute excerpts for the period May 13, 2015, through September 9, 2015, and those excerpts would be posted on the Board website. In addition, Vice Chair Manering read the Resolution that was approved by the Board on the prior day as following:

RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF SOUTHERN IHroved .TRUVi .TRUVSOU5.1(r)-32 WHEREAS, the Board recognizes Illinois families and students are alarmed with the lack of state supported financial aid and services; and

WHEREAS, the Board acknowledges continued state financial support is a fundamental tenet of the partnership between the state and public universities; and

WHEREAS, the Board recognizes Southern Illinois University is an economic catalyst for the central and southern Illinois region dependent upon state support; and

WHEREAS, the Board has accepted its responsibly to address Illinois fiscal problems by improving efficiencies and accountability within the university;

THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Board of Trustees of Southern Illinois University urges an immediate adoption of a fiscal 2016 State budget to provide critical sustained state support for: student access and opportunity, excellent teaching, cutting edge research, quality of life public service, life nourishing healthcare, and Southern Illinois' economic viability, and

THAT this resolution hereby signed by the Board of Trustees, shall be forwarded to the Governor, the Leaders of the General Assembly and the leadership of the higher education community.

ust

Charles reported that House Bill 4336 and Senate Bill 2196 were identical bills that would permit four-year universities to give undocumented students financial aid but not Monetary Award Program (MAP) grants. He noted that approximately 1,500 undocumented students attend Illinois universities. Mr. Charles reported that Senate Bill 2043 proposed the allocation of funds for the MAP grant which would assist approximately 7,000 SIU students. He further reported that Illinois Procurement Code exemptions that were Higher Education friendly had expired and House Bill 170 proposed reestablishment of the exemptions. Mr. Charles spoke of other measures that were under consideration such as the possible allowance for the University to sell unused property with the proceeds to be used for scholarships or financial aid for students which would in turn free up operations dollars. Another possible bill under consideration would give the University the ability to sell alcohol at its stadiums and arenas as Northern Illinois University, Illinois State, and the University of Illinois are allowed. Lastly, there is potential consideration for a bill that would allow universities to borrow funds to get through the end of the fiscal year.

President Dunn reported on the FY 16 budget impasse and on some prospects to assist the campuses through the crisis. He informed the Board of some money saving measures that had been taken on the campuses. The President reported on the creation of the Technology Transfer operations, to establish a system office, and to maintain better efficiencies campus-wide with Mr. Rob Patino as its director.

The President reported that the University has a new Ethics Officer, Ms. Michelle Taylor, who has been employed in SIU's Internal Audit Office for six years and holds two degrees from SIU Carbondale.

9

President Dunn reported the Federal Perkins Loan program had expired and it had not moved forward in the Senate; as a result, he would look for a new bill to be presented. He reported that a number of SIU students utilize these loans to pay for college. This loan program is important to universities across the country and presidents and chancellors are contacting their senators.

The President reported the U. S. Department of Education college scorecard ranking information was available at https://collegescorecard.ed.gov/. He discussed the federal budget for FY16-FY17 and the possibility for some increased spending. Some discretionary non-military spending may increase which could be important for federal grants and contracts the University currently has and for federal financial aid for students. Dr. Dunn spoke on diversity initiatives the University is trying to advance. He noted at the same time the fact the U. S. Supreme Court was hearing oral arguments on the possibility of dismantling the system of affirmative action for enrollment in universities.

Dr. Brad Colwell, Interim Chancellor, SIU Carbondale, provided his report for the Carbondale campus. Dr. Colwell thanked the Board of Trustees and President Dunn for the privilege of returning to SIU and their faith in his leadership as Interim Chancellor. He spoke of his first 70 days as Interim Chancellor and about the community outreach, meetings with students and alumni, cultural events, as well as the strategic operations that had taken place during that period. He reported on the community colleges he, along with representatives from the Undergraduate Admissions Office had visited or would be visiting over the upcom



Dr. Andrea Imre, presented on behalf of the Faculty Senate at SIU Carbondale. Dr. Imre thanked President Dunn for answering questions about the organization of the realignment of professional schools reporting lines during the morning's Board Finance Committee meeting. She spoke of remaining concerns regarding the proposed reporting line changes for professional schools. Dr. Imre noted that President Dunn had mentioned that promotion and tenure policies will likely need to be revised and she requested that faculty input be taken into consideration at that time.

Dr. Jim MacLean, spoke on behalf of the Graduate Council at SIU Carbondale regarding concerns about the proposed reporting line changes for professional schools. He noted that the resolution of proposed Item FF should include wording changes to the White Paper: The Mutual and Respective Roles of the Board, President, and Chancellors, approved by the Southern Illinois University Board of Trustees in 2009.

Under the Application for Appeals item on the agenda, the Vice Chair reported that the Board of Trustees held discussion related to two appeals during the prior day's executive session meeting. She inp4lb.3 u004 0 TD1f4 about4a

Vice Chair Manering explained the procedure for the Board's omnibus motion. The listing of items proposed for the omnibus motion were as follows:

REPORTS OF PURCHASE ORDERS AND CONTRACTS, AUGUST, SEPTEMBER AND OCTOBER 2015, SIUC AND SIUE

5.	Krajewski, Carey W.	Chair (100%)** /Professor (0%)	Zoology	08/01/2015		\$ 11,555.00/mo \$138,660.00/FY
6.	Love, Lanel D.	Assistant Director*** (previously Program Assistant)	Center for Inclusive Excellence	09/01/2015	59.84%	\$ 3,916.00/mo \$ 46,992.00/FY (Previous Salary – \$ 2,450.00/mo \$ 29,400.00/FY)
7.	Lucas, Peter M.	Assistant Director, Transfer Relations**** (previously Coordinator)	Undergraduate Admissions			

* Promotion of Administrative Professional

**Change from term to continuing

*** Change from Civil Service position to Administrative Professional position

**** Continuing appointment hired under new search

***** Change from term to continuing per IEA/NEA NTT faculty contract

- B. Leaves of Absence With Pay None to be Reported
- C. Awards of Tenure-

	Name	<u>Title on Effective Date of</u> <u>Tenure</u>	<u>Department</u>	Effective Date
1.	Colwell, W. Bradley	Professor	Educational Administration and Higher Education	10/01/2015
D. <u> </u>	Promotions – None to be Rep	orted		

The following changes in faculty-administrative payroll at the School of Medicine/Springfield campus are submitted to the Board of Trustees for ratification in accordance with the Board Policy on Personnel Approval (2 <u>Policies of the Board B</u>). Additional detailed information is on file in the Office of the Dean and Provost. Where appropriate, salary is reported on a monthly basis and on either an academic year (AY) or fiscal year (FY) basis.

A. <u>Continuing Appointment</u> (If the person previously had a University appointment, it is so noted. Otherwise, the perso

3.	El Bitar, Youssef	Assistant Professor of Clinical Surgery	Surgery	11/02/2015	\$ 16,666.67/mo \$200,000.04/FY
4.	Eley, Nicholas	Physician Assistant- Certified*	Surgery	09/08/2015	\$ 8,333.33/mo \$ 99,999.96/FY
5.	Gates, Michelle	Assistant Professor of Clinical Psychiatry	Psychiatry	10/05/2015	\$ 3,416.66/mo \$ 40,999.92/FY
6.	Johnson, Christy	Assistant Director of Patient Business Services*	SIU Healthcare Patient Business Services	11/01/2015	\$ 5,333.33/mo \$ 63,999.96/FY
7.	May, Tracey	Physician Assistant- Certified	Family and Community Medicine	09/14/2015	\$ 6,666.67/mo \$ 80,000.04/FY
8.	Novar, Leanne	Certified Nurse Midwife	Family and Community Medicine	08/10/2015	\$ 8,333.34/mo \$100,000.08/FY
9.	Perich, George	Executive Director Of Human Resources*	Human Resources	10/19/2015	\$ 12,333.33/mo \$147,999.96/FY
10.	Sporrer, Lorie	Certified Nurse Practitioner	Obstetrics and Gynecology	10/01/2015	\$ 7,309.99/mo \$ 87,719.88/FY
11.	Van Ulft, Stephanie	Assistant Professor of Clinical Psychiatry	Psychiatry	01/04/2016	\$ 13,416.66/mo \$160,999.92/FY
12.	West, Carrie	Certified Nurse Practitioner*	Surgery	08/18/2015	\$ 7,500.00/mo \$ 90,000.00/FY
13.	Wilton, Jordanna	Curriculum Coordinator*	Education and Curriculum	11/01/2015	\$ 5,833.34/mo \$ 70,000.08/FY

B. Leaves of Absence with Pay -

	Name	<u>Type of</u>	<u>Department</u>	% of Leave	Date
1.	Arguelles, Cesar	<u>Leave</u> Professional Development	Family and Community Medicine	50%	03/01/2016-02/28/2017

<u>Purpose:</u> Professional Development leave is requested to compete a primary care sports medicine fellowship at the Quincy Primary Care Sports Medicine. Fellowship from 03/01/2016 through 02/28/2017.

- C. <u>Awards of Tenure</u> None to be Reported
- D. <u>Promotions</u> None to be Reported

CHANGES IN FACULTY-ADMINISTRATIVE PAYROLL – SIUE

The following changes in faculty-administrative payroll are submitted to the Board of Trustees for ratification in accordance with the Board Policy on Personnel Approval (2 <u>Policies of the Board B</u>). Additional detailed information is on file in the Office of the Chancellor. Where appropriate, salary is reported on a monthly basis and on either an academic year (AY) or fiscal year (FY) basis.

A. <u>Continuing Appointment</u> (If the person previously had a University appointment, it is so noted. Otherwise, the person is a new University employee.)

Name Rank/Title Department

6.	Salama, Catrina	Counselor	Counseling Services	08/03/2015	\$2,475.00/mo \$29,700.00/FY
7.	Serrano, Lindsay	Counselor	Counseling Services	08/13/2015	\$3,300.00/mo \$39,600.00/FY

B. Leaves of Absence with Pay - None to be reported

RECOMMENDATION FOR HONORARY DEGREE, SIUC

Summary

The President, on the recommendation of the SIUC Interim Chancellor, requests Board of Trustees approval to bestow the Honorary Degree, Doctor of Education Leadership, on Donald L. Beggs, at the May 2016 SIUC commencement.

Rationale for Adoption

Donald L. Beggs, a two degree alumnus of SIU Carbondale and a native of Harrisburg, Illinois, served this campus for more than 32 years in various faculty and administrative positions before retiring as Chancellor in 1998.

He received a bachelor's in education in 1963 and a master's in education in 1964, both from SIUC. He earned his doctorate in educational measurement and statistics from the University of Iowa in 1966. That year, he joined the SIU Carbondale College of Education's Department of Guidance and Educational Psychology as an assistant professor, going on to distinguish himself as one of his college's top teachers and most prolific researchers. Beggs is a specialist in test development and measurement theory, authoring four books and 30 articles on the topics over his career.

He was named the associate dean of the Graduate School in 1970, earned full professor rank in 1972, and served as assistant dean of the College of Education from 1973-1975 before becoming the acting assistant vice president for academic affairs and research and later the associate dean of the College of Education and Human Services. In 1981, he was named dean of the College and held that position until being named Chancellor in 1996.

In 1999, he was named President of Wichita State University, retiring in 2012 with an outstanding record of accomplishment. The university named a building after Beggs to honor his service to the campus.

His connections to SIU Carbondale run deep. His grandmother attended the university in the late 1880s and his mo

President George W. Bush at the 81st White House Black History Month Celebration, and being inducted into the National Association of Negro Business and Professional Women's History Hall of Fame in 2013.

In 1997, Higginbotham was given the Distinguished Service Award from SIU Carbondale. Ten years later, Higginbotham returned to campus to share her inspirational story during a visit to campus sponsored by the Paul Simon Public Policy Institute as part of the 2007 Homecoming celebration. She also served as the Homecoming parade's Grand Marshal and took time to visit with 200 middle school students from throughout southern Illinois about her career.

She makes her home in Charlotte, North Carolina, with her husband James Mitchell.

Considerations Against Adoption

University officials are aware of none.

Constituency Involvement

SIUC's Committee for Honorary Degrees and Distinguished Service Awards and the Interim Chancellor of Southern Illinois University Carbondale have recommended this matter to the President.

Resolution

BE IT RESOLVED, By the Board of Trustees of Southern Illinois University in regular meeting assembled, That: the Honorary Degree, Doctor of Aerospace Science, be presented to Joan E. Higginbotham at the May 2016 commencement, or some commencement thereafter, of Southern Illinois University Carbondale.

RECOMMENDATION FOR DISTINGUISHED SERVICE AWARD, SIUC

Summary

The President, on the recommendation of the SIUC Interim Chancellor, requests Board of Trustees approval to bestow the Distinguished Service Award on F. Lynn McPheeters at the May 2016 SIUC commencement.

Rationale for Adoption

F. Lynn McPheeters retired as vice president and chief financial officer of Caterpillar Inc. in February 2005. His distinguished career at the international Fortune 500 Company spanned 40 years, joining Caterpillar soon after graduating from SIUC in 1964. McPheeters held a variety of financial positions within the company in the U.S. and abroad before being named CFO in 1998. During his tenure as CFO, McPheeters helped build a partnership between SIUC and Caterpillar. In retirement, McPheeters continues to be engaged professionally, serving as a board member of several companies.

McPheeters was raised on a family farm near Canton, IL, where he learned the value of hard work at an early age. The first generation of his family to attend college, McPheeters is an advocate for the value of public education. He has actively supported Illinois public education by serving on fundraising and advisory boards on the community college and university level and providing funds for scholarships. He was the first person to enroll at Canton College (now called Spoon River Community College) in 1960 and is the school's first graduate. He led the school's 50th anniversary campaign in 2010 and established the Francis G. and Dorothea B. McPheeters Scholarship in honor of his parents

At SIUC, McPheeters joined the SIU Foundation board in 2002, serving as chair of the audit committee and later as board president. He is now an emeritus member of the board. In 2006, he and his wife, Susan, established the F. Lynn and Susan F. McPheeters Charitable Remainder Trust that will endow a chair in the College of Business. In addition, McPheeters was one of the first members of the business college's external advisory board, formed in 1982, and continues to serve in this capacity. For his professional accomplishments, he was inducted into the College of Business Hall of Fame in 1988 and has received the SIU Distinguished Alumni Award and the College of Business Alumni Achievement Award. McPheeters is a life member of the SIU Alumni

Resolution

BE IT RESOLVED, By the Board of Trustees of Southern Illinois University in regular meeting assembled, That: the Distinguished Service Award be presented to F. Lynn McPheeters at the May 2016 commencement, or some commencement thereafter, of Southern Illinois University Carbondale.

RECOMMENDATION FOR DISTINGUISHED SERVICE AWARD, SIUC

Summary

The President, on the recommendation of the SIUC Interim Chancellor, requests Board of Trustees approval to bestow the Distinguished Service Award on Charlotte West at the May 2016 SIUC commencement.

Rationale for Adoption

Charlotte West is a pioneer in the field of women's collegiate athletics, serving as coach, administrator, sports official, Title IX advocate, and mentor to women athletes over a 42-year career at SIUC.

A native of Grand Rapids, Michigan, who was raised in Florida, West has been involved with sports since childhood. A softball player for her alma mater, Florida State University, West holds a master's degree in physical education and dance from the University of North Carolina-Greensboro and a doctorate in physical education from the University of Wisconsin-Madison.

West was a key member of SIUC Athletics staff from 1957 through 1998. From 1957 to 1975, she coached five women's sports at SIUC: basketball, golf, softball, volleyball and badminton. In 1969, West led the women's golf and basketball teams to fifth place finishes in national championships. As women's basketball coach, West's team went 113-51 in 12 seasons. She served as Director of Intercollegiate Athletics for Women from 1960-1986. Under her leadership as a coach and later as an administrator, the women's athletics program at SIUC was transformed from a largely club-based pre-Title IX system to a nationally recognized program with a budget of more than \$1 million for 11 varsity sports.

After the merger of men's and women's athletics in 1986, West served as Associate Athletic Director, Interim Athletic Director and Associate Athletic Director for 10 years until her 1998 retirement.

West also served the cause of women athletes on the national front. She was a founding member of the Association of Intercollegiate Athletics for Women (AIAW), serving as the organization's commissioner of national championships, and later as

president from 1978 – 1979. The organization, created after the passage of Title IX in 1972, was formed to create a mechanism for female athletes to participate in championship events. In her capacity as president of AIAW, she also was a member of the US Olympic Committee. After the organization merged with the NCAA in 1982, West chaired the NCAA's Committee on financial aid and amateurism and was an outspoken member on the NCAA Gender Equity Task Force. West served on Title IX task forces in 1992 and 2013. In recognition of her work on behalf of the NCAA, a room at the NCAA national office in Indianapolis has been named after West.

Numerous organizations have honored West's pioneering efforts on behalf of women's athletics. In 1996, she became the first-ever recipient of the Honda Award of Merit for outstanding achievement in women's collegiate athletics. In 2005, West became just the fourth SIU representative to be inducted into the Missouri Valley Conference Hall of Fame, joining Walt Frazier, Jim Hart, and Lew Hartzog. The MVC also awarded her its Lifetime Achievement award and created an annual award named the Charlotte West Award which is given to one male and one female student-athlete in recognition of their outstanding achievement in academics, athletics, service, and leadership. The first woman member of the National Association of Collegiate Director of Athletics (NACDA), West was inducted into the NACDA Hall of Fame in 2006. For her work in the development of Title IX, West was inducted into the Women's Basketball Hall of Fame in 2014.

SIUC has honored West's legacy by naming its softball stadium after her. The SIU Hall of Famer is also a recipient of SIUC's Inspiring Women of Achievement Award and Excellence Through Commitment Award. The SIU Department of Kinesiology in conjunction with the National Girls & Women in Sports Day honors individuals in the local school systems who have made a positive impact in the area of gender equality in athletics through awarding the "Drs. Elaine Blinde and Charlotte West Gender Equity Hero" award, describing West as someone "whose name is synonymous with gender equity."

Considerations Against Adoption

University officials are aware of none.

Constituency Involvement

SIUC's Committee for Honorary Degrees and Distinguished Service Awards and the Interim Chancellor of Southern Illinois University Carbondale have recommended this matter to the President.

Resolution

BE IT RESOLVED, By the Board of Trustees of Southern Illinois University in regular meeting assembled, That: the Distinguished Service Award be presented to Charlotte West at the May 2016 commencement, or some commencement thereafter, of Southern Illinois University Carbondale.

RECOMMENDATION FOR DISTINGUISHED SERVICE AWARD, SIUC

Summary

The President, on the recommendation of the SIUC Interim Chancellor, requests Board of Trustees approval to bestow the Distinguished Service Award on Charles N. Wheeler, III, at the May 2016 SIUC commencement.

Rationale for Adoption

Charles N. Wheeler, III, is director of the highly regarded Public Affairs Reporting program at the University of Illinois at Springfield. Wheeler has actively engaged, recruited and mentored SIU Carbondale journalism graduates throughout his more than two decades leading this prestigious program--which was founded in 1972 by Paul Simon following his failed bid for the Illinois Democratic gubernatorial nomination. There is no better path to a master's degree for a journalism student and there is no better path to a job in journalism than this program. Dozens of SIUC alumni have benefited from this program and from Wheeler's influence in their careers.

A native of Joliet, IL, Wheeler came to the University of Illinois at Springfield after a 24-year career at the *Chicago Sun-Times*. Wheeler had covered state government and politics for the paper since 1970, when he covered the Sixth Illinois Constitutional Convention. For the last 19 years of his *Sun-Times* tenure, Wheeler was assigned to the newspaper's Statehouse bureau. During that time, he was elected to 16 consecutive one-year terms as president of the Illinois Legislative Correspondents Association.

Since 1984, Wheeler has written a monthly column for *Illinois Issues* magazine, which has won six Capitolbeat awards for magazine commentary/analysis. In 2006, the Illinois Associated Press Editors Association elected him to The Lincoln League of Journalists, which honors men and women who have provided exemplary service to other journalists and to daily newspapers in Illinois.

Before joining the *Sun-Times* in 1969, he served more than three years as a U.S. Peace Corps volunteer in the Republic of Panama. He is a 1963 graduate of St. Mary's College in Winona, Minnesota, majoring in English, and received a master's degree in journalism from the Medill School of Journalism at Northwestern University in 1965.

Considerations Against Adoption

University officials are aware of none.

Constituency Involvement

SIUC's Committee for Honorary Degrees and Distinguished Service Awards and the Interim Chancellor of Southern Illinois University Carbondale have recommended this matter to the President. Additionally, the Journalism School faculty unanimously adopted a resolution supporting this nomination.

Resolution

BE IT RESOLVED, By the Board of Trustees of Southern Illinois University in regular meeting assembled, That: the Distinguished Service Award be presented to Charles N. Wheeler, III at the May 2016 commencement, or some commencement thereafter, of Southern Illinois University Carbondale.

RECOMMENDATION FOR HONORARY DEGREE AWARD, SIUE

<u>Summary</u>

The President, on the recommendation of the SIUE Interim Chancellor, requests Board of Trustees approval to award an Honorary Doctor of Humane Letters degree to Ms. Thelma Mothershed-Wair at the May 2016 SIUE commencement.

Rationale for Adoption

Ms. Thelma Mothershed-Wair has spent her life championing diversity efforts. In 1957, she attended Central High School in Little Rock, Arkansas, as one of the Little Rock Nine; this followed the landmark Brown vs. the Board of Education decision in which it was determined that state-sanctioned segregation of public schools was a violation of the 14th amendment and was therefore unconstitutional.

Ms. Mothershed-Wair then attended Southern Illinois University Carbondale and graduated in 1964 with a bachelor's in home economics. She received a master's in guidance and counseling from Southern Illinois University Edwardsville in 1970 and later completed an administrative certificate in education. Ms. Mothershed-Wair dedicated her career to community outreach and education, working as a home economics teacher and guidance counselor for the East St. Louis school district until her retirement in 1994. Her efforts in the classroom earned her the Outstanding Role Model Award by the East St. Louis Top Ladies of Distinction for the 1989-1990 school year.

Ms. Emig-Hill is the Chairman of the Bob Emig Foundation, named after her late husband. The Foundation was started in 2004 by Aaron Emig, Bob's son, to continue his father's legacy to offer support to youth—especially those who wouldn't have the opportunity without the assistance of the Foundation—in providing a healthy sports experience. The vision of the organization reads simply: "Inspiring Youth Athletes...Transforming Lives." Ms. Emig-Hill is also a participant and donor for the Bishop Henry J. Althoff Society and the Today and Tomorrow Education Foundation, helping ensure that disadvantaged youth receive a quality education.

Ms. Emig-Hill received her BA in Mass Communications in 1972 and her MBA in 1977, both from SIUE. She is an active member of the SIUE Mass Communication Advisory Council, the SIUE School of Business Advisory Council, and the School of Business Dean's Society—and she serves as the Chairman of the Major Gifts Committee of the SIUE Foundation Board of Directors. Her dedication to the growth of SIUE extends to the Bob Emig Scholarship, which she endowed for students pursuing degrees in Mass Communications.

Ms. Emig-Hill worked for over 30 years as the Director of Human Resources at Anheuser-Busch, until her retirement in 2006. She has been a tireless supporter of SIUE through her giving, counsel, active participation, and volunteerism.

Constituency Involvement

SIUE's Committee for Honorary Degrees and Distinguished Service Awards and the Interim Chancellor of Southern Illinois University Edwardsville have recommended this matter to the President.

Resolution

BE IT RESOLVED, By the Board of Trustees of Southern Illinois University in regular meeting assembled, That: the Distinguished Service Award be presented to Camille Emig-Hill at the May 2016 commencement, or some commencement thereafter, of Southern Illinois University Edwardsville.

Sources: http://www.emigfoundation.org/about/the-emig-foundation/ http://www.archstl.org/ttef http://www.althoff.net/

APPROVAL OF CHANGE TO 4 POLICIES OF THE BOARD A.7, COOPERATIVE GRADUATE PROGRAMS, TUITION AND FEES, SIUC and SIUE

<u>Summary</u>

This matter approves appropriate revisions to Board policy concerning the course registration, the paym

7. Intra-University Assessment. For any semester in which a graduate student is in a cooperative degree program or concurrently enrolled in <u>degree</u> programs at both SIU at Carbondale and SIU at Edwardsville, the student may <u>will</u> register for all such programs through one "home" campus <u>courses</u> and pay all tuition and fees at the rates then applicable at that one the campus <u>where coursework is being taken</u>. The other "receiving" campus shall not assess tuition or fees for programs located on its campus. If the student has a graduate assistantship or fellowship tuition waiver, it shall be honored <u>on both campuses</u>, the campus which awarded it shall be the home campus for that student; otherwise the student may elect which is to be the home campus. During such concurrent enrollment the student shall have library privileges on both campuses and shall be eligible to purchase an appropriate parking permit at either or both campuses. (9/12/96) 12/10/15

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, The President of Southern Illinois University be and is hereby authorized to take whatever action may be required in the execution of this resolution in accordance with established policies and procedures.

APPROVAL OF PURCHASE: LEASE OF MULTI-FUNCTION COPIER MACHINES AND SERVICE, SOUTHERN ILLINOIS UNIVERSITY

<u>Summary</u>

This matter seeks authorization for the lease of multi-function copier machines & service for the three campus locations. The contracts will be funded from individual user department accounts and based on departmental uses and function preferences.

Rationale for Adoption

This request is for approval to establish a prime vendor contract for multifunction copier machines and related service for all campus locations. This contract includes approximately 646 units that have the ability to copy, print, scan, and fax. The vendor will provide new machines, service, parts and supplies for a five-year term for a monthly rental fee and a per copy price.

The cost of the five-year contract is approximately \$390,000 per year for SIU Edwardsville, \$700,000 per year for SIU Carbondale, and \$150,000 per year for SIU Springfield. The total value of the 5-year contract is approximately \$6,200,000. The actual cost is dependent on the number of copiers, the function preferences by the individual departments, and the amount of copies made. Bids were received in accordance with University procurement policies. The Interim Chancellor and the Vice Chancellor for Administration, SIUE, have recommended this matter to the President.

Consideration Against Adoption

to faculty members' online Dropbox; creates online digital platforms for quizzes and tests; and provides a digital grade book system t

(1) The purchase order for coal, coal hauling, ash disposal, and ash hauling services, Carbondale Campus, SIUC, be and is hereby awarded to Knight Hawk Coal, LLC, Percy, IL, in the amount of \$16,000,000.

(2) Funding for this work will come from the Utilities Purchased Services account.

(3) The President of Southern Illinois University be and is hereby authorized to take whatever action may be required in the execution of this resolution in accordance with established policies and procedures.

AWARD OF CONTRACTS: JAMES W. NECKERS BUILDING HVAC, CARBONDALE CAMPUS, SIUC

<u>Summary</u>

This matter seeks to award the contracts for the HVAC renovations and the related electrical work at the James W. Neckers Building (Neckers) on the Carbondale campus. Bids for construction were received and the award of the contracts is now requested.

Rationale for Adoption

At the July 12, 2012, Board of Trustees meeting, project and budget approval was received for the heating, ventilation and air conditioning system renovations to the Neckers Building at an estimated cost of \$1,500,000.

The Neckers Building was constructed in 1963. It is approximately 186,000 square feet. Space in the Neckers Building is assigned to the College of Science, Graduate School and the School of Medicine. The existing HVAC system is original to the building and is beyond its estimated useful life. This project will focus on the penthouse and the northeast section of C wing affecting two teaching labs and two research labs.

The bids were received and are shown on the attached bid tabs. The work will be funded from the proceeds of the Series 2014A Certificates of Participation (COPs) that were issued on February 13, 2014. The debt payment will be repaid from the Facilities Maintenance Fee.

The Interim Chancellor and the Vice Chancellor for Administration and Finance have recommended this matter to the President.

Considerations Against Adoption

This project may cause a transitory disruption to the teaching and research being conducted at the Neckers Building.

Resolution

BE IT RESOLVED, By the Board of Trustees of Southern Illinois University in regular meeting assembled, That:

(1) The contract for the HVAC work at the James W. Neckers Building,

The design will be completed through in-house resources and the construction will be bid in accordance with the Illinois Procurement Code and the SIU Board of Trustees Policies. The estimated cost of this project is \$750,000. The work will be funded by the Parking Division and Parking Facilities Replacement and Reserve Fund. It is anticipated that the work will be done during the summer of 2016.

The Interim Chancellor and the Vice Chancellor for Administration and Finance have recommended this matter to the President.

Constituency Involvement

SIUC Traffic and Parking Committee supports the proposed project. The committee, which has constituency representation, consists of members from the Administrative Professional Staff Council, Civil Service Employees Council, Faculty Senate, Graduate Council, Graduate/Professional Student Council, Undergraduate Student Government, Student Center Board, Provost and Vice Chancellor for Academic Affairs, Vice Chancellor for Administration and Finance, Traffic and Parking Appeals Board, and Department of Public Safety.

Considerations Against Adoption

This project will require phased work calling for temporary closures of the parking lots and roadway which may create a potential for inconvenience.

Resolution

APPROVAL OF PURCHASE: MEDICAL OFFICE BUILDING LEASE, SCHOOL OF MEDICINE CAMPUS, SIUC

<u>Summary</u>

This matter seeks approval for the purchasing contract for leased space. The purchase order for the lease is based on the annual lease rate plus operating expenses for a maximum value of the first year contract of \$964,530.17.

Rationale for Adoption

The SIU Decatur Residency Program located in Decatur, IL, has grown in educational and clinical needs. The program in Decatur currently leases space from Lillibridge (LHPT Decatur LLC) and has been offered by Lillibridge to occupy a building with more square footage for our residency education and clinical programs.

The SIU Decatur Residency Program has occupied its current space since 1997, during which time the program has expanded and patient volume has grown from 15,000 to 21,000 outpatient visits. The current facility is 13,591 square feet and is inadequate to meet the program's educational and clinical needs. The Residency Review Committee recommends 1,000 sq. ft. per resident which would suggest a minimum space of 15,000 square feet. Lillibridge has offered a new building space of 38,177 square feet which would meet our current and future educational and clinical program needs. This expanded space will also house medical and surgical specialists from the SIU School of Medicine.

The Decatur Residency Program serves as an educational training site for physician assistants, medical students, and nursing students. The new space offers an important growth opportunity for our new Team Care model which enhances the opportunity to serve more patients in the community.

Resolution

BE IT RESOLVED, By the Board of Trustees of Southern Illinois University in regular meeting assembled, That:

(1) The purchase order for leased space, School of Medicine Campus, SIUC, be and is hereby awarded to LHPT Decatur, LLC, Chicago, IL for a five year term with the option to renew for an additional five years.

(2) The Board of Trustees hereby authorizes the purchase of goods and services associated with this award.

(3) The purchase will be funded by School of Medicine non-appropriated funds and funds derived from patient revenue sources.

(4) The President of Southern Illinois University be and is hereby authorized to take whatever action may be required in the execution of this resolution in accordance with established policies and procedures.

PROJECT AND BUDGET APPROVAL: EDWARDSVILLE CAMPUS DENTAL CLINIC RENOVATION, SIUE

<u>Summary</u>

This matter seeks project and budget approval to renovate 195 University Park Drive in order to develop an Edwardsville Campus Dental Clinic for the School of Dental Medicine (SDM). The estimated cost of the project is \$3,017,305 and will be The design and renovation are expected to be funded from private donations (\$145,000), SDM Clinic Operation (\$250,000), SDM equipment use fees (\$791,000), Parking Services Revenues (\$22,000) for repairing and surfacing the parking lot, and University Plant funds (\$1,809,305).

The Interim Chancellor, the Associate Provost for Academic Affairs, and the Vice Chancellor for Administration, SIUE, have recommended this matter to the President.

Resolution

BE IT RESOLVED, By the Board of Trustees of Southern Illinois University in regular meeting assembled, That:

(1) The capital improvement project, Edwardsville Campus Dental Clinic Renovation, SIUE, be and is hereby approved at an estimated cost of \$3,017,305.

(2) The project shall be funded from private donations, SDM clinic operation revenues, SDM equipment use fees, Parking Services Revenues, and University Plant funds.

(3) The President of Southern Illinois University be and is hereby authorized to take all action required in the execution of this resolution in accordance with established policies and procedures.

AWARD OF CONTRACT: ELECTRIC DISTRIBUTION SYSTEM REPAIRS AND UPGRADES, PHASE TWO, SIUE

The approved budget for the project is \$11,000,000 and will be funded by the Facilities Fee. The project is being implemented in multiple phases as funding is available and to coordinate power outages with the academic schedule.

The bids received for phase two of the project are favorable and the award of a contract is now requested. A summary of bids received is attached for review. The Interim Chancellor and the Vice Chancellor for Administration, SIUE, have recommended this matter to the President.

Considerations Against Adoption

animal tunneling, the bricks are in need of replacement. The design includes replacing the existing brick pavers and sand base with a permeable brick paver system. The existing seating and large planters will be retained, additional seating provided, and trees replaced around the perimeter. The estimated cost of the project is \$1,100,000 and will be funded from the Facilities Fee.

A Qualifications Based Selection (QBS) process was used to select Oates Associates, Collinsville, Illinois, as the civil engineering consultant for the design of the project. The Interim Chancellor and the Vice Chancellor for Administration, SIUE, have recommended this matter to the President.

Considerations Against Adoption

The work included in this project will cause a temporary inconvenience to the pedestrian walkway across the center of campus. The work is planned to be accomplished during the summer, and the students and employees will be directed around the construction site.

Resolution

BE IT RESOLVED, By the Board of Trustees of Southern Illinois University in regular meeting assembled, That:

(1) The capital improvement project, Stratton Quadrangle Brick Replacement, SIUE, be and is hereby approved at an estimated cost of \$1,100,000.

(2) The project shall be funded from the Facilities Fee.

(3) The President of Southern Illinois University be and is hereby authorized to take all action required in the execution of this resolution in accordance with established policies and procedures.

PROJECT AND BUDGET APPROVAL: SELECT EXTERIOR CONCRETE REPAIRS, SIUE

<u>Summary</u>

This matter seeks project and budget approval to remove and replace select, deteriorated concrete exterior building stairs, pavement, and stormwater structures on the Edwardsville campus. The estimated cost of the project is \$520,000 and will be funded from University Plant funds.



SEARCH FIRM APPROVAL: CHANCELLOR'S SEARCH, SIUE

<u>Summary</u>

This matter seeks approval to utilize Witt-Kieffer as a Search Firm for the SIUE Chancellor Search. The estimated cost of the firm is \$5,000 and 32% of the first year's total compensation of the incoming Chancellor.

Rationale for Adoption

Southern Illinois University Edwardsv

Considerations Against Adoption

There is a considerable cost in using a search firm. Nonetheless, University officials believe the benefits of utilizing the firm's services in this instance far surpass the burdens of this cost.

Resolution

BE IT RESOLVED, By the Board of Trustees of Southern Illinois University in regular meeting assembled, That:

(1) Witt-Kieffer is engaged as the search firm for the SIUE Chancellor Search for the cost of \$5,000 and 32% of the first year's total compensation of the incoming Chancellor.

(2) The President of Southern Illinois University be and is hereby authorized to take whatever action may be required in the execution of this resolution in accordance with established policies and procedures.

APPROVAL OF AGREEMENT OF INTERIM CHANCELLOR, SOUTHERN ILLINOIS UNIVERSITY EDWARDSVILLE

<u>Summary</u>

The matter presents for approval the Interim Chancellor Employment Agreement for Dr. Stephen Hansen as Interim Chancellor of Southern Illinois University Edwardsville (SIUE).

Rationale for Adoption

This requests approval of an employment contract, following the Board of Trustees' action appointing Dr. Stephen Hansen as Interim Chancellor of SIUE and authorizing President Dunn to negotiate such an employment contract, subject to the Board's approval of its final terms.

Resolution

BE IT RESOLVED, By the Board of Trustees of Southern Illinois University in a regular meeting assembled, that the Interim Chancellor Employment Agreement of Dr. Stephen D. Hansen is hereby approved, with a salary of \$290,000.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the President is hereby authorized and shall take all action as may be necessary in the execution of this resolution and to enact said Interim Chancellor Employment Agreement.

APPROVAL OF AGREEMENT OF DEAN AND PROVOST, SOUTHERN ILLINOIS UNIVERSITY SCHOOL OF MEDICINE

Summary

The matter presents for approval the Employment Agreement for Dr. Jerry Kruse as Dean and Provost of Southern Illinois University School of Medicine.

Rationale for Adoption:

This requests approval of an employment contract, following the Board of Trustees' action appointing Dr. Jerry Kruse as Dean and Provost of Southern Illinois University School of Medicine, effective January 1, 2016, and authorizing President Dunn to negotiate such an employment contract, subject to the Board's approval of its final terms.

Resolution

BE IT RESOLVED, By the Board of Trustees of Southern Illinois University in a regular meeting assembled, that the Employment Agreement of Dr. Jerry Kruse is hereby approved, with a salary of \$395,575.20 annually.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the President is hereby authorized and shall take all action as may be necessary in the execution of this resolution and to enact said Employment Agreement.

Trustee Shelton moved the approval of the receipt of Reports of Purchase

Orders and Contracts, August, September, and October 2015, SIUC and SIUE; the

ratification of Changes in Faculty-Administrative Payroll for SIUC and SIUE;

Recommendation for Honorary Degree, SIUC [Dr. Donald Beggs]; Recommendation for

Honorary Degree, SIUC [Ms. Joan E. Higginbotham]; Recommendation for Distinguished

Service Award, SIUC [Mr. F. Lynn McPheeters]; Recommendation for Distinguished

Service Award, SIUC [Dr. Charlotte West];

[Ms. Camille Emig-Hill]; Approval of Change to 4 Policies of the Board A.7, Cooperative Graduate Programs, Tuition and Fees, SIUC and SIUE [Change to 4 Policies of the Board A.7]; Approval of Purchase: Lease of Multi-Function Copier Machines and Service, Southern Illinois University; Approval of Purchase: D2L Learning Environment Services, SIUC; Approval of Purchase: Coal, Coal Hauling, Ash Disposal and Ash Hauling, Carbondale Campus, SIUC; Award of Contracts: James W. Neckers Building HVAC, Carbondale Campus, SIUC; Project and Budget Approval: Parking Lot and Roadway Resurfacing, Carbondale Campus, SIUC; Approval of Purchase: Medical Office Building Lease, School of Medicine Campus, SIUC; Project and Budget Approval: Edwardsville Campus Dental Clinic Renovation, SIUE; Award of Contract:

APPROVAL OF REORGANIZATION OF REPORTING LINES FOR SIU FIRST-PROFESSIONAL SCHOOLS

<u>Summary</u>

This matter requests approval to change the reporting lines for the deans of SIU's first-professional schools from the provost to the chancellor at their respective

SIU's regional accrediting agency, the Higher Learning Commission, has been apprised of the proposed reporting line change and has not raised any issues that would jeopardize institutional accreditation; discipline-specific accreditation for the firstprofessional schools will not be impacted, and this change is actually anticipated to be viewed in a positive light by those organizations. The proposed change is expected to be cost neutral.

Constituency Involvement

In May 2015, Trustees received a comprehensive review on this question in the report, *Proposed Change in Reporting Lines for the First-Professional Schools of Southern Illinois University*, which included the findings of a combined SIUC Faculty Senate-Graduate Council task force, as well as an extensive supportive resolution that was unanimously approved by the SIU School of Law faculty. Also included in the report document were letters of endorsement for the reporting line change—with respect to the School of Medicine—from the Board of Directors of SIU Healthcare (the practice plan's corporate governing body) and the Executive Board of AFSCME Local 370.

While Board of Trustees Policy 1.B.2 delegates authority to the President of Southern Illinois University for "administrative reorganizations which do not effectively increase the number of units of instruction" (which this change does not propose to do), the support of the Board is nonetheless requested for this matter given its significance and import across a broad group of professional, community, and alumni constituencies.

Considerations Against Adoption

Although the first-professional school faculties and administrators have indicated support for this change in reporting lines, the faculty constituency bodies at SIUC—in the report of their task force— have instead suggested that the Board consider the creation of a new and separate executive board that would "concern itself with only those external matters dealing with the School of Medicine" and focus upon nonacademic issues concerning the "organization and delivery of clinical programs which are typically outside the Chancellor's purview."

Resolution

BE IT RESOLVED, By the Board of Trustees of Southern Illinois University in regular meeting assembled, That:

(1) Effective January 1, 2016, the reporting line for the Dean of the SIU School of Dental Medicine and the Dean of the SIU School of Pharmacy shall be to the SIUE Chancellor; the reporting line for the Dean of the SIU School of Law shall be to the SIUC Chancellor; and the reporting line for the Dean and Provost of the SIU School of Medicine shall be jointly to the SIU President and the SIUC Chancellor.

(2) The President of Southern Illinois University be and is hereby authorized to take all action required in the execution of this resolution in accordance with established policies and procedures.

Trustee Portwood reviewed her position to vote against the item. She referenced a study performed by former Vice President of Academic Affairs John Haller where he concluded that the current reporting lines in which the Dean and Provost of the Medical School reports to the Chancellor was normative in the field and his recommendation was that SIU continue that reporting arrangement. Trustee Portwood added that the Provost of SIU Carbondale conducted a study about the other first professional schools reporting lines and the findings were that SIUC's reporting structure, whereby the first professional schools report to the Provost, was normative as well with the recommendation being the continuance of the current reporting rather than to have the first professional schools report to the Chancellor. Trustee Portwood noted that it was not clear from reading the various studies what problem would be solved by the change in the reporting lines.

Trustee Gilbert made a motion to approve the item. The motion was duly seconded by Trustee Sholar. The motion passed by the following recorded vote: aye, Hon. Phil Gilbert, Dr. Donna Manering, Mr. Joel Sambursky, Mr. Allen Shelton, Ms. Amy Sholar, Maj. Gen. Randal Thomas; nay, Dr. Shirley Portwood.

Vice Chair Manering announced that the next Board of Trustees meeting would be held March 24, 2016, at the SIU Edwardsville campus. She reported that a news conference would be held upon adjournment of the meeting at the Board table.

51

Trustee Sambursky made a motion to adjourn the meeting. Trustee Shelton seconded the motion. The motion passed unanimously by voice vote.

The meeting adjourned at 12:12 p.m.

Misty Whittington, Executive Secretary